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DOMINI®N

Geotechnical Services Inc.

March 1, 2007 : REPLY TO A NOTICE OF VIOLATION

. U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Document Control Desk '
Washington, D.C. 20585

Nuclear Regulatory Commlssron
Region | _

475 Allendale Road ,
King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406

Attn: Mrs. Marie Miller, Chief
Security and Industrial Branch
- Division of Nuclear Materials Safety

Re:  Response to Inspeetien Report
Inspection 03036463/2006001
- Dominion Geotechnical Services

Dear Mrs. Miller:

Domlmon Geotechnical Serwces Inc. (Dominion) has received the ‘referenced report dated
February 6, 2007 from your office. Within the inspection report, Dominion recognized the
following violations: s '

A. Dominion failed to perform the required periodic review of the radiation protection
program. Specifically, the last review of the radiation protection program was
conducted in 2004, a time interval greater than annually.

~ Response: In accordance with the intent of 10CFR 20.1101(c), Dominion has conducted
two- (2) reviews of the radiation safety program subsequent to the safety .inspection
performed by Mr. Richard H. Ladun of the NRC Region I office. More specifically
"Dominion Geotechnical Services, Inc. has reviewed our radiation safety program on
December 1, 2006 and on March 5, 2007. The reviews were performed by Mr. William D.
Idoni, P.E., R.S.0. of Dominion Geotechnical Services.

Dominion Geotechnlcal Services intends to perform future reviews of the safety program on
a basis more frequent than once a year.

5110 Southpoint Parkway e Fredericksburg, Virginia 22407 ¢ (540) 710-1218 Fax (540) 710-1219
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Response to Inspection Report
Inspection 03036463/2006001
Dominion Geotechnical Services

B. A Nuclear Gauge has been stored at 204 East Main Street in Remington, Virginia,
contrary to the License Condition 10 of License No. 45-30860-01 that states, in part,
that the radioactive material may be used or stored at 5110 Southpoint Parkway,

. Fredericksburg, Virginia and temporary jobsites.

Response: The storage location listed as 204 East Main Street in Remington, Virginia was
considered a temporary site to store a single gauge. Contrary to the report, two (2) gauges
were not stored at the site at any one time. Dominion Geotechnical Services, Inc. will not
use the Remington site in the future.

To.avoid future violations, and in the event that more than one gauge needs to be stored at
the Remington site on a more permanent basis, the Remington site has applied for a separate
license to the NRC Region I office in King of Prussia, Pennsylvania. Based on past
experience with license applications, the Remington site should have a separate license
within eight (8) weeks. (A copy of the license submittal is attached to this response).

Should you have any questions, or require additional information, please contact me.
Very Truly Yours,

Dominion Geotechmcal Services, Inc.

Lot B@

‘William D. Idoni, P.E.
Principal Engineer
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OFFICE OF NUCLEAR MATERIALS SAFETY AND SAFEGUARDS SEND APPLICATIONS TO:
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) US NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION, R
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APPENDIX B

ITEMS 5 AND 6: MATERIALS TO BE POSSESSED AND PROPOSED
USES | | < | N

Yes | No | Radioisotope Manufacturer or . Quantity Use As Listed | Specify Other
: Distributor Model No. on SSD Uses Not
Certificate Listed on SSD
. - ] Certificate
_ Cesium-137 Sealed source manufacturer | Notto exceed | Yes l{ dl:\lot
' or distributor and model either the applicable
/ " | number: | maximum
Tp oXlE activity per
R " | source or Uses are:
Device manufacturer or maximum
distributor and mode! activity per
number: device as ubmit safety
TRoY LE R specified in od analysis
o =~ | Sealed Source G.\ns-mvc’r- supporting safe
3411,434%0, |an —RESTRECLZ | use)
gistr Jor] S15ES.
3 : ; '
#4640,.39501 icat o
B 39,0 i
Americium- Sealed source manufacturer | Notto excéed | Yes @/ B/Not
/ 241 or distributor and model either the . applicable
. . Specific
number: maximum .
Do description of
activity per the gauge use:
source or 8aULEUSE: | 3 Uses are:
maximum To TEST
activity per ] —_—
. o) . .
number: device as o105 (Submit safety
specified in ox analysis )
. TRQX L Sealed Source Coss n,jupponing safe
% 341, B259)D and Device —OUSTRVET) use)
: L ' Registration SI17TES
Hysge, #3450, | Cenificate |
q¢0

Ry Pun dore9"
3 agy0 (2)
¥ 34911 - (2)
¥ 3456 W)
8 3u3ze ()
g o ()
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APPENDIX B

Yes | No | Radioisotope Manufacturer or Quantity Use As Listed |- Specify Other
Distributor Model No. on SSD Uses Not
Certificate Listed on SSD
Certificate
Californium- | Sealed source manufacturer | Not to exceed | YesO ONot . -
252 or distributor and model either the . applicable’
’ number: maximum Specn.ﬁc' .
. description o
'4 /A activity per the eauge
source or = O Uses are:
Device manufacturer or maximum
J distributor and model activity per E—
number: device as (Submit safety
N ,A specified in lys)
- Sealed Source rting safe
: and Device
Registration
Certificate
Other Isotope | Sealed source manufacturer | Not ed | YesO O Not
(Specify): or distri-butor and model eithe.r t ,Speciﬁc applicable
number: . maximum . :
» : .. description of
N I A activity per the gauge use:
/ , source or o © | O Uses are:
Device man maximum
distribut activity per
number device as (Submit safety
specified in analysis
1 Sealed Source supporting safe
and Device use)

Registration

| Certificate

Financial Assurance Required and Evidence of Financial Assurance Provided

NUREG - 1556, Vol. I, Rev. 1




APPENDIX B .

ITEMS 7 THROUGH 11: TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE, FACILITIES
AND EQUIPMENT, RADIATION SAFETY PROGRAM, AND WASTE

PROGRAM AND THEIR
TRAINING AND
EXPERIENCE -
RADIATION SAFETY
OFFICER

,\,JH.L.)A\A D .

Namé: -T,.DS)JJ',! pE

described in Criteria in the section entitled
“Individual(s) Responsible for Radiation
Safety Program and Their Training and
Experience — Radiation Safety Officer” in’
NUREG-1556, Vol. 1, Rev. 1, dated
November 2001.

DISPOSAL
- Item No. And Title Suggested Response Yes Alternative
. : Procedures
. Attached
- 7. INDIVIDUAL(S) Before obtaining licensed materials, the 0
RESPONSIBLE FOR proposed RSO will have successfully -
RADIATION SAFETY completed one of the training courses

8. TRAINING FOR 0
INDIVIDUALS WORKING
IN OR FREQUENTING
RESTRICTED AREAS

9. FACILITIES AND _ Separate Item 9
EQUIPMENT ; key issues are addressed | Response _

_ z I' .
:tgaigoglsrr: al::tilc Need Not Be Submitted
‘ ty. 8" . With Application =~ -~
gency Procedures. :

10. RADIATION SAFETY s not required to, and should Need Not Be Submitted
PROGRAM - AUDIT - not, submlt its audit program to NRC for With Application
PROGRAM review during the licensing phase. )

10. The applicant is not required to submit a- Need Not Be Submitted
response to the termination of activities With Application
section during the initial application.

However, when the license expires when the
licensee ceases operation, NRC Form 314
must be submitted. y,
10. RADIATION SAFETY We will either possess and use, or have access 'd 0

PROGRAM - SURVEY
INSTRUMENTS -

to and use, a radiation survey meter that meets

the Criteria in the section entitled “Radiation
Safety Program — Instruments” in
NUREG-1556, Vol. 1, Rev 1, dated
November 2001.

NUREG - 1556, Vol. I, Rev. |



APPENDIX B

Item No. And Title

Suggested Response

Yes Alternative
Procedures
Attached

10. RADIATION SAFETY
PROGRAM — MATERIAL

Physical inventories will be conducted at
intervals not to exceed 6 months, to account

d] o

RECEIPT AND for all sealed sources and devices received
ACCOUNTABILITY and possessed under the license. -

10. RADIATION SAFETY Either we will maintain, for inspection by
PROGRAM - NRC, documentation demonstrating that,
OCCUPATIONAL unmonitored individuals are not likely to™ -

receive a radiation dose in excess of

- DOSIMETRY

10 percent of the allowable limits in
10 CFR Part 20, or we will provide dosimetry
processed and evaluated by an
NVLAP-approved processor that is
exchanged at a frequency recommended by -
the processor.

10. RADIATION SAFETY
PROGRAM - PUBLIC
DOSE '

The applicant is not requi
response to the public ¢
licensing phase. Thi
during an inspection.

10. RADIATION SAFETY

PROGRAM -
OPERATING AND
EMERGENCY
PROCEDURES

Need Not Be Submitted
With Application

L

NUREG-1556, Vol. 1, Rev. |, dated
ee2001, and provide copies of these

OR

gPeency procedures will be
ented, and maintained and
5 titeria in the section entitled
“Radiation Safety Program — Operating and
Emergency Procedures™ in NUREG-1556,
Vol. 1, Rev. 1, dated November 2001.

g a

10. RADIATEDN SAFETY

Leak tests will be performed at intervals
approved by NRC or an Agreement Sate and
specified in the Sealed Source and Device
Registration Sheet. Leak tests will be
performed by an organization authorized by
NRC or an Agreement State to provide leak
testing services for other licensees or using a
leak test kit supplied by an organization
authorized by NRC or an Agreement State to
provide leak test kits to other licensees and
according to the kit supplier’s instructions.

o 0
| The _
information in

- Appendix J
supporting a
‘request to
perform leak
testing and
sample
analysis is
attached.

NUREG - 1556, Vol. 1, Rev. 1
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 APPENDIX B

Item No. And Titlé

Suggested Response

Yes | Alternative
Procedures
Attached

10. RADIATION SAFETY
PROGRAM -
MAINTENANCE

We will send the gauge to the manufacturer

Routine Cleaning and Lubrication

We will implement and maintain procedures
for routine maintenance of our gauges
according to each manufacturer’s
recommendations and instructions.

Non-Routine Maintenance

other person authorized by NRC or an
Agreement State to perform non-routine
maintenance or repair operations that require
the removal of the source or source rod from
the gauge. '

supporting a
request to
perform
non-routine
maintenance
in-house is
attached.

10.RADIATION SAFETY
'PROGRAM —
TRANSPORTATION

The applicant is not required to su
response to transportation during t¥e licensing

Need Not Be Submitted
With Application

11. WASTE MANAGEMENT -
GAUGE DISPOSAL AND
TRANSFER

required to submit a
anagement during the
owever, the licensee

Need Not Be Submitted
With Application

B-5
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APPENDIX B

Item No. And Title

Suggested Response

Yes Alternative
Procedures
Attached

10. RADIATION SAFETY
PROGRAM -
MAINTENANCE

Routine Cleaning and Lubrication

We will implement and maintain procedures
for routine maintenance of our gauges
according to each manufacturer’s
recommendations and instructions.

‘Non-Routine Maintenance

We will send the gauge to the manufacturer or
other person authorized by NRC or an
Agreement State to perform non-routine
maintenance or repair operations that require
the removal of the source or source rod from
the gauge.

supporting 2 )
request to
perform
non-routine
maintenance
in-house is
attached.

. 10.RADIATION SAFETY
'PROGRAM —
TRANSPORTATION

The applicant is nor required to su
response 1o transportation during the Jensing
process. However, this issue will be reviewed
during igsgegijon.

11. WASTE MANAGEMENT -
GAUGE DISPOSAL AND
- TRANSFER

Need Not Be Submitted -
With Application

equired to submit a
agement during the
wever, the licensee” -
Ement, and maintain

Need Not Be Submitted
With Application

NUREG - 1556, Vol. 1, Rev. |



UNITED STATES

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION
REGION |
475 ALLENDALE ROAD
KING OF PRUSSIA, PENNSYLVANIA 19406-1415

February 6, 2007
Docket No. 03036463 . License No. 45-30860-01

William D. Idoni, P.E.

Radiation Safety Officer

Dominion Geotechnical Services, Inc.
5110 Southpoint Parkway
Fredericksburg, VA 22408

SUBJECT: INSPECTION 03036463/2006001, DOMINION GEOTECHNICAL SERVICES,
FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA SITE AND THE REMINGTON AND
FREDERICKSBURG FIELD SITES, AND NOTICE OF VIOLATION

Dear Mr. Idoni: ‘

On November 6 and 7, 2006, Richard H. Ladun of this office conducted a safety inspection at
the above address and of activities authorized by the above listed NRC license. The inspection
was an examination of your licensed activities as they relate to radiation safety and to
compliance with the Commission’s regulations and the license conditions. The inspection
consisted of observations by the inspector, interviews with personnel, and a selected
examination of representative records. The findings of the inspection were discussed with
Jason T. Brook of your organization at the conclusion of the inspection and with you on January
10, 2007 by telephone. :

Based on the results of this inspection, it appears that your activities were not conducted in full
compliance with NRC requirements. A Notice of Violation is enclosed that categorizes each
violation by severity level. You are required to respond to this letter and should follow the
instructions specified in the enclosed Notice when preparing your response. In your response,
you should document the specific actions taken and any additional actions you plan to prevent
recurrence. Your response may reference or include previous docketed correspondence, if the
correspondence adequately addresses the required response. After reviewing your response.
to this Notice, including your proposed corrective actions and the results of future inspections,
the NRC will determine whether further NRC enforcement action is necessary to ensure
compliance with NRC regulatory requirements.

Current NRC regulations are included on the NRC's website at www.nrc.gov; select Nuclear
Materials; Medical, Academic, and Industrial Uses of Nuclear Material; then Toolkit Index
Page. The current Enforcement Policy is included on the NRC’s website at www.nrc.qov; select
What We Do, Enforcement, then Enforcement Policy. Or you may obtain these documents
by contacting the Government Printing Office (GPO) toll-free at 1-888-293-6498. The GPO is
open from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. EST, Monday through Friday (except Federal holidays).



W. Idoni
Dominion Geotechnical Services

Your cooperation with us is appreciated.

Enclosure:
‘ Notice of Violation

cc: o A
Commonwealth of Virginia

Sincerely,

Wﬁcw 7’2‘[&/

Marie Miller, Chief

Security and Industrial Branch
Division of Nuclear Materials Safety



NOTICE OF VIOLATION-

Dominion Geotechnical SeNices, Inc. _ Docket No. 03036463
Fredericksburg, VA ' License No. 45-30860-01

During an NRC inspection conducted on November -6 and 7, 2006, two violations of NRC
requirements were identified. In accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy, the violations
are listed below: ' '

A 10 CFR 20.1101(c) requires that the licensee shall periodically (at least
annually) review the radiation protection program content and implementation.

Contrary to the above, as of November 7, 2006 the licensee failed to perform the
required periodic review of the radiation protection program. Specifically, the last review
of the radiation protection program was conducted in 2004, a time interval greater than
annually. '

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement IV).

B. 10 CFR 30.34(c) requires in part that the licensee confine possession and use of
radioactive material to the locations authorized in the license.

* License Condition 10 of License No. 45-30860-01 states, in part, that radioactive
‘material may used or stored at 5110 South Parkway, Fredericksburg, Virginia and
temporary job sites. o

Contrary to the above, as of January 10, 2006 the licensee did not confine poéseséion
and use of radioactive material to the location authorized in the license. Specifically, the
licensee had been using an office located at 204 East Main Street, Remington, Virginia,

~ to store and to dispatch (two) portable gauging devices to temporary job sites. This
location is not authorized in the license.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VI).

Pursuant to the provisions of 10 CFR 2.201, Dominion Geotechnical Services is hereby
required to submit a written statement or explanation to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission, ATTN: Document Control Desk, Washington, D.C. 20555, with a copy to the
Regional Administrator, Region |, within 30 days of the date of the letter transmitting this Notice
of Violation (Notice). This reply should be clearly marked as a “Reply to a Notice of Violation”
and should include for each violation : (1) the reason for the violation, or, if contested, the basis
for disputing the violation, (2) the corrective steps that have been taken and the results

- . achieved, (3) the corrective steps that will be taken to avoid further violations, and (4) the date

when full compliance will be achieved. Your response may reference or include previous
docketed correspondence, if the correspondence adequately addresses the required response.
If an adequate reply is not received within the time specified in this Notice, an orderor a
Demand for Information may be issued as to why the license should not be modified,
suspended, or revoked, or why such other action as may be proper should not be taken.
Where good cause is shown, consideration will be given to extending the response time.



Notice of Violation 2
Dominion Geotechnical Services :

If you contest this enforcement action, you should also provide a copy of your response to the
Director, Office of Enforcement, United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington,
DC 20555-0001. Under the authority of Section 182 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. 2232, any response
which contests an enforcement action shall be submitted under oath or affirmation.

Your response will be placed in the NRC Public Document Room (PDR) and onthe NRC Web
site. To the extent possible, it should, therefore, not include any personal privacy, proprietary, -
or safeguards information so that it can be made publically available without redaction.
However, if you find it necessary to include such information, you should clearly indicate the
specific information that you desire not to be placed in the PDR, and provide the legal basis to
support your request for withholding the information from the publlc

g] accordance with 10 CFR 19.11, you may be required to post this Notlce ‘within two working
days.

Dated This _6"_ day of _February 2007




